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Subject: Amendment Number 1 of RFA # 688-03-008, entitled “West Africa Regional Health Program”

Dear Offerors,

The information on the below pages is added to SECTION V – ANNEXES, References on page 79 

under RFA # 688-03-008, entitled “West Africa Regional Health Program”
Regards,

Signed

Marcus A. Johnson, Jr.

Regional Agreement Officer

Questions from Interested Parties Relevant to All 

1. We would like to confirm that on page 8, L. “Submissions of Applications” refers to both the technical and cost proposals. Is it correct that both the cost and technical proposal can be submitted electronically provided they both follow the criteria listed in paragraph 1? 

Response to #1: Yes. In fact the entire proposal is required to be submitted electronically. Hard copy of proposal is not required or desired. We use MS Windows 2000 platform with MS Word for word processing and MS Excel spreadsheet programs. We also make extensive use of Adobe Portable Document Format (PDF) reader 5.1 and WinZip compression software applications. Make sure your electronic application is compatible with the above-mentioned.

2. Section IV, A, page 30 re sub-grant mechanisms, the RFA suggests that the program would award an estimated 15 matching grants, 10 institutional strengthening grants, and 20 competitive grants.  Please clarify whether these numbers of grants represent the combined totals for the two anticipated RFAs (FP/RH/CS and HIV/AIDS), or are these the number of grants anticipated for each of the two RFAs. 

Response to #2: Regarding sub-grant mechanisms (15 matching grants, 10 institutional strengthening grants and 20 competitive grants). We expect these 45 grants to be divided among the two RFAs (FP/RH/CS and HIV/AIDS) proportional to the earmark budget structure (slightly more for HIV/AIDS), with consideration for a balance among the IRs. 

3. What is WAHO’s relationship to this grant making process? Will the CA grantees organize the call for proposals and make the selection and then does WAHO manage the fund? Or does WAHO participate in the selection process?

Response to #3: Regarding WAHO's involvement in the sub-grants referenced above- WAHO will be involved in the selection of grantees and will collaborate with CAs on the implementation and monitoring of the grants. It is important to remind bidders that WAHO has a dual role. They share in the design and implementation responsibilities but are themselves recepient of assistance primarily through the direct grants from USAID.   As referenced on p30, the Competitive Grants are designed for funding by USAID (via a separate solicitation) with USAID and WAHO oversight.

4. Section V. A. 2, IR 5.2, page 45, re DHS studies.  The RFA states that the regional program will support up to “five DHS during the course of this project on a cost-share basis.”  Please clarify whether the applicant should budget for these DHS studies, or whether USAID will fund these directly and separate from the awarded cooperative agreement. Likewise, on page 58, the RFA says “USAID will support up to five DHS studies over the course of the project.” Does this mean that this is independent of this project or does this mean that through the WARP project in FP/RH that five will be supported with project funds? On page 61, item 3 in the chart says that the “USAID no longer will have resources to finance periodic DHS studies…More modest USAID cost-sharing with new donor programs…will be used to leverage continued collection of …data.” Please clarify USAID’s role in financing these studies and whether they are to be budgeted for (expecting a cost-share) in the proposal and budget.

Response to #4: As stated on page 31, the DHS will be supported with FS funds. They do not need to be budgeted for within the RFAs. Leveraging is a responsibility of MACRO, USAID and other donors and not that of the grantees selected under this RFA.

5. Page 4.  Do we submit a three-year proposal and budget plus separate year 4 and year 5?  Or do we submit a 5-year proposal and budget? 

Response to #5: Submit a five-year proposal and with a summary budget estimate on a SF 424A. Also include five, more detailed annual budgets with supporting budget notes. The award is anticipated being initially for three year base period with pre-priced option periods for year four and five. Again, make sure to include budget notes explaining your assumptions (e.g. formulas and rationale). 

6. Page 31.  How do we know what the Ambassador's Fund will provide vis-a-vis support for project administration and activities? 

Response to #6: As stated on p28, the Ambassador’s Fund will be supported via FS funds which will cover all administration and activities under the AF. No funds need to be allocated to this activity within applications responding to this RFA. See question 4 also.

7. Page 63.  Do we budget for office space in Accra or assume that the project office will be located in the WARP office in Accra? 

Response to #7: Offerors must find their own office space. WARP is not providing office space.

8. Page 11. Regarding the "USAID handbook of indicators" (Technical approach, section a), is the mission referring to the MEASURE published compendium of indicators for Evaluating RH programs (Aug 2002) or the Africa Bureau's Health and FP Indicators (July 1999)?

Response to #8: USAID Handbook of Indicators refers to the USAID-funded MEASURE Compendium of Indicators.

9. Page 31. The RFA says the total dollar amount of the bid “does not include additional funds for program administration and field support for Ambassador’s Funds, DHS, contraceptive commodities, including condoms, contraceptive logistic TA and direct grants to governmental organizations.” As clarified on pages 28 and 30, we see that the Ambassador’s Funds and contraceptive commodities are not to be included. We expected that activities related to contraceptive logistics and the DHS (to some degree) be included in the CA grantees’ proposal budget as they are illustrative activities mentioned in the RFA. Please clarify whether or not contraceptive logistic TA in relation to the commodities security plan or a best practice in FP service delivery would be included in the budget. Please also clarify the issue about the DHS surveys as raised in Question 4. 

Response to #9: A regional commodity security initiative is being developed between the World Bank, UNFPA, USAID and other donors in the region. USAID plans to use FS funds for contraceptive logistics Technical Assistance (TA). The role of grantees under the RFA in the initiative will become clearer once the initiative is developed and will evolve over time. Bidders do not need to budget for this item. 

10. In various parts of the RFA (pages 26, 27, 55, and 56), it is mentioned that WAHO is expected to play a significant role in the project and it is suggested that WAHO be a partner in project implementation and perhaps development. Institution building is also part of the activities to be funded under the HIV/AIDS and FP/RH WARP project. On page 30, the RFA states that USAID/WARP will be providing direct support to increase WAHO’s medium-term and long-term managerial and technical capacity. Can you give some advice or more clarification concerning the role of USAID and the role of the CA grantees in this area? 

Response to #10: As described in the RFA, WAHO has the dual role of both beneficiary and implementing partner. WAHO will receive a direct grant from USAID to support institutional capacity-building. As implementer, WAHO is, “… looked to in this program to play a significant role in a) facilitating the development of a regional advocacy plan; b) facilitating the development of a regional commodity or bulk purchase plan, c) brokering the national adoption of health policies, norms and standards, and d) collecting, assessing and disseminating information, including information on best practices.”  Illustrative activities and outcomes  with WAHO are given on p. 56: 

Improve WAHO capacity to effectively manage select program activities.  As described above, WAHO will play a key role in several program activities (monitoring regional implementation of international agreements and treaties, development of an advocacy agenda(s) for the region, encouraging use of model policies, norms and procedures, development of a regional commodity security plan and perhaps a bulk purchasing system). In addition, the program might assist in establishing WAHO’s documentation center, possibly including transfer of the CDC-Retro information center in Abidjan to WAHO. To help achieve these program objectives and to increase WAHO’s medium-term institutional capacity, the program might provide a package of carefully tailored multi-donor technical, managerial and financial assistance to WAHO. This package might include a long-term technical or managerial advisor to WAHO, a variety of short-term advisors or consultants, some modern equipment, including information technology and payment of some of the operating costs essential to carry out the four program activities. Some of these responsibilities are still being negotiated with WAHO and CDC. 

Other donors, such as CIDA, the E.U. and the World Bank are reportedly also seriously considering providing assistance to WAHO and other ECOWAS institutions to give them the capacity to meet their broad regional mandates.  Therefore USAID regional program assistance to WAHO will need to be carefully coordinated with these donors as well as WAHO. 

Illustrative Outcomes:


Demonstrated capacity of WAHO to effectively manage select program activities 


WAHO staff hired and trained to replace LTTA and STTA consultants

Administrative, personnel and financial management systems established and functioning

Successful implementation of competitive grants program

Procurement systems for commodities improved

11. Given that WAHO is a key agency in this project, we imagine that WAHO will have to “partner” with or demonstrate support to all of the agencies bidding since the final outcome is not yet determined. This pertains to other key agencies as well such as CERPOD, CEFOREP, CERCOM, etc. Is this a correct assumption?

Response to #11: Direct grants will be given from USAID to WAHO and CERPOD, but it is expected that firms/organizations selected will work closely with them in the implementation activities (i.e. review of grant proposals, etc.), however, they are not expected to bid as partners on the RFAs. Other NGOs (such as CERCOM) may be partners of the awardees under the RFA.

12. In the table of illustrative activities on page 60, an activity mentioned under Award 2 is an HIV/AIDS hotline. Is this correct or is this type of activity expected under Award 1? 

Response to #12: No, HIV/AIDS hotlines would be part of the HIV/AIDS RFA.

13. In the FP/RH outcome table, partnerships with multi-nationals and private sector companies are only mentioned as part of expanding private sector participation in FP/RH. Does this mean that these partnerships are limited only to this type of activity?

Response to #13: No, partnerships with multi-nationals and other private sector entities are strongly encouraged in all areas of the RFA.

14. IR 5.4 mentions establishing work-based programs for family planning services. Does this RFA restrict itself to work-based programs or can partnerships be developed outside the workplace?

Response to #14: No, the RFA (IR 5.4) does not restrict to work-based programs.

15.  When was this RFA posted on FedBizOpps?

Response to #15: It was not. It was posted at the Agency website www.usaid.gov shortly before Christmas. The draft for industry comment was posted at the end of October 2002 at FedBizOpps as part of a series of seven draft solicitations being presented at a Pre-solicitation Conference held in Bamako, Mali on November 12 through 14, 2002.

16.  Is there any specific guidance on page limits for the Technical Application? 

Response to #16: There is no specific page limit.

17.  Is there any guidance on font or font size? 

Response to #17: Use font type size 11 or 12 point. We recommend Times Roman font style.

18.  Must the Table of Contents for the Technical Application follow the three evaluation criteria in the order they are given in the RFA, i.e., Key Personnel, then Technical Application, then Past Performance? 

Response to #18: No, but the evaluation criteria must be addressed.

19.  Will there be any specific weights given to sub-sections of the evaluation criteria, assuming that the three remain weighted equally? 

Response to #19: All evaluation factors other than cost or price, when combined, are significantly more important than cost or price. Technical evaluation factors, and the subfactors thereof, are listed below are of equal weight to each other. Cost evaluation factors, and the subfactors thereof, are listed below are of equal weight to each other.  Thus “sub-sections” which I take to mean “subfactors” are of equal weight to each other under each significant evaluation factor. See Section II, paragraph B. of the RFA.

20.  Some documents, such as NICRAs and some Certs & Reps, are not available electronically.  Can these also be faxed along with the signed pages? (It seems that there will be from 20-30 pages that will have to be faxed by each Applicant.) 

Response to #20: Yes, they may be faxed though I prefer them scanned in and delivered as part of cost proposal in a PDF file. Regardless we strongly encourage all offerors not wait until the the day before or the day of the Closing (Date) to submit proposals.

21. Budget - should it be for 3 years, showing closeout? for 5 years? both? 

Response to #21: See response to Question number five above.

22.  The separate grants from USAID to WAHO and CERPOD will be very important as these institutions are new can benefit from a wide variety of assistance.  Will there be any additional information provided regarding these grants from USAID (content and funding level), as that will help Applicants determine what types of assistance to propose to fill in gaps? 

Response to #22: See response to question two above.

23.  Is the section on "Key personnel" expected to include a discussion of the rest of the personnel proposed for the project?  Currently, there are only two key personnel positions. 

Response to #23: USAID is basically stating that regardless of what staffing configuration proposed these two key positions must be, at a minimum, included and are considered by USAID as the most critical for success of any program approach proposed. Offerors may add up to three additional positions (individuals), for a total of five, to be designated as “key” positions.

Under paragraph c of the Technical Approach evaluation criteria in Section II. USAID states that a Mobilization Plan is required and the components thereof. Overall approach to staffing is one of those elements. Also USAID expects to be able to tell from the Cost proposal (spreadsheet and/or budget notes) who (specifically by name) is being proposed to be employed, at what pay rate, for how long, and in what capacity, e.g. his/her job title.  

24. Will there be any more guidance on the earmarked funds and what percentage of the funds listed will be dedicated to each of the two awards? 

Response to #24: No

25. Will the winners of each award be allowed to receive funds from other USAID sources beyond the four earmarked accounts listed in the RFA?

Response to #25: Yes. You are also encouraged to seek other funds from all sources.

26.  Is there a page limitation for the Technical Proposal?  If so, what are the page limit breakdowns for each component?

Response to #26: No.

27.  Of the three sub-grant mechanisms to be considered under this RFA (as per RFA Page 29), are these for the HIV/AIDS component or the component responsible for leadership in increasing capacity of regional institutions and family planning/reproductive health, child survival/infectious diseases and micronutrient activities?  If for both, what is USAID's guidance in terms of number of sub-grants, per category, between the two areas?

Response to #27: See response to question number two.

28. Will a preference be provided to applicants that apply to both components of the RFA vs. single component applicants?

Response to #28: No.

29. Section I, Grant Application Format, Cost Application Format, item A (page 6) indicates applicants should provide a copy of the program description with their cost volume. Please clarify which parts of the program description are required and confirm they should be included in the cost volume.

Response to #29: This may actually be a moot point since application package is required to be submitted electronically. Just make sure the proposed Program Description is a separate file. This also point out a critical point – applications from offerors must be submitted entirely electronically (signature pages may be faxed), whether or not hard copies are submitted. 

30. Section I, Grant Application Format, Cost Application Format - should all consortium members or only the lead institution submit current NICRAs, representations and certifications, and evidence of responsibility?

Response to #30:  All

31. Section II, B. Evaluation Criteria, Technical Evaluation appears to provide evaluation criteria for only the two key personnel. Will other proposed personnel be evaluated? If so, what percentage of the personnel evaluation score will they receive? 

Response to #31: See response to question number 23.

32. Section II, Subsection A.2.d. for the technical approach and Subsection B.4. indicate both the technical approach and cost proposal will be evaluated on the amount of non-Federal resources provided to the contract. Please confirm that this one issue will be evaluated twice.

Response to #32: Non-Federal sources will be evaluated in the technical section for its contribution and relevance toward the achieving the overall program goals. The cost section deals with evaluating the amount, value (of in-kind) and method of the contribution.

33. IR 5.4.3. indicates the program will develop model health care management systems. None of the specific activities associated with IR 5.4 address model health care management systems. Should applicants focus only on the activities listed for the FP/RH and MCH sub-components under IR 5.4, or should they include support for development of model health care management systems?

Response to #33: The role will be one of information dissemination of successful, relevant model health care management systems not develop one.

34. Section II, Cost Evaluation indicates "costs related to the purchase of contraceptives should not be budgeted. WARP will procure, or assist in securing from other donor sources, the contraceptives estimated for the program."  Could USAID please indicate the level of support it intends to provide for contraceptives?

Response to #34: The level will be established on a yearly basis, based on Agency appropriations obtain and allocated for such.

35. Section IV.D: Complementary USAID Activities "In 2002, USAID and UNAIDS conducted a donor mapping exercise in 12 countries that provides information on the sources and content of donor health funding throughout the region. These reports will be available on the WARP website." When will this be available?

Response to #35:  They are now available at our mission website http://www.usaid.org.ml under the “Business & Procurement” link, then click on “Solicitations”.

36. Section IV. A. Types of Resources Available for this Program "The CAs will be expected to procure all commodities except contraceptives and condoms." Does USAID have expectations of the level of commodity purchases for the new program?

Response to #36: No, it has not been specifically set at this time.

37. Section IV.A. Types of Resources Available for this Program  "Contraceptive commodities will be procured through a centrally funded procurement and will be accompanied by TA." Could USAID clarify whether the TA accompanying the centrally-funded procurement of contraceptives is to be provided by the CA awarded the WARP health agreement or by another entity?

Response to #37: No, not at this time.

38. USAID mentions it will provide development grants to regional government partners outside this particular agreement. These grants may cover some resident long-term technical assistance. Would the awardee be expected to provide this long-term technical assistance and should we cost this TA? Could USAID indicate the type of long-term technical assistance it envisions funding through these grants?

Response to #38: No. The amount and scope of the direct USAID grant will be determined following analysis of needs and in consultation with grantees. 

39. Section IV.A. Types of Resources Available for this Program provides information on three types of sub-grants. Are these grant funds to be used by both the HIV/AIDS and FP/RH/MCH/ID/N components of the award? Will the grants be split equally between the two awards? Also, since the second (non-HIV) award includes the institutional development component, will this award be responsible for all the institutional strengthening grants?

Response to #39: Refer to question two. Institutional strengthening grants will be split among the two awards and each technical area will be responsible for its respective grants.

40. The discussion of the FP/RH IR 5.4 activity for expanding private sector participation in FP/RH makes reference to matching grants that will be used to leverage private investment. Are these matching grants included in the matching grants for operational research described in Section IV.A. Types of Resources Available for this Program?

Response to #40: No. “Types of Resources Available” is generic.

41. Please confirm that under the Institutional Development component, the awardee for the FP/RH/MCH/ID/N award will be responsible for building capacity for HIV/AIDS surveillance, data collection and analysis.

Response to #41: HIV/AIDS surveillance, data collection and analysis fall within the domain of the HIV/AIDS awardee. 

42. The summary chart for activities/implementation mechanism/partners/outcomes for IR 5.4 Health Sector Reform Models under CS/MH/ID/N includes reference to "joint planning with regional CS/ID partners to leverage resources. One LTTA in Abidjan." Please explain whether the CA will need to provide the LTTA in Abidjan and, if so, what type of specialist this should be.

Response to #42: No, the awardee is not expected to provide a LTTA in Abidjan.

43. The activity to improve WAHO capacity to effectively manage select program activities includes: "To help achieve these program objectives and to increase WAHO's medium-term institutional capacity, the program might provide a package of carefully tailored multi-donor technical, managerial and financial assistance to WAHO. This package might include a long-term technical or managerial advisor to WAHO, a variety of short-term advisors or consultants, some modern equipment, including information technology and payment of some of the operating costs essential to carry out the four program activities." Could USAID provide information on the value of the equipment required and the operating costs the program would be expected to support.

Response to #43: The amount and scope of the direct support to WAHO is not yet determined, requested information will only be available following and analysis of needs and in consultation with WAHO.

44. The activity to support the long-term sustainability of CERPOD mentions a transition package of assistance that might include declining levels of support for operating costs. Could USAID provide a total dollar value for anticipated support for CERPOD operating costs. Should we assume these costs would be shared with the HIV/AIDS awardee?

Response to #44: That amount and scope of the direct USAID grant has not been determined and will depend first and foremost on how the winning proposal(s) envisions working with the organization. USAID/WARP is stating that it fully intends to make award of a grant directly to CERPOD to support the institutional development of the organization toward its obtaining a higher level of self-sufficiency.

45. The RFA indicates the program will support five DHSes over the life of the award. To ensure comparability of costs, could USAID indicate the level of financial support the FP/RH/CS/MH/ID/N awardee is expected to provide for the DHSes?

Response to #45: Cost of DHS varies by country and scope. USAID will fund DHS outside these awards, but awardees may assist in donor leveraging.  

46. The institutional development component includes an internship program. Other than placement, what responsibilities would the awardee have toward the interns? Would the awardee be responsible for providing or financing IT and language training? Provision of equipment? What level of financial support does USAID expect the awardee to provide the interns?

Response to #46: Awardee is to calculate and budget what it believes will be the full support cost of interns. 
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